
Licensing Sub-Committee

Date: Thursday, 25th October, 2018
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Council Chamber  - Guildhall, Bath

Councillors: Les Kew, Rob Appleyard and Deirdre Horstmann

Chief Executive and other appropriate officers
Press and Public

A briefing session for Members will be held at 9.30am in the room where the meeting is to take 
place.

Sean O'Neill
Democratic Services
Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG 
Telephone: 01225 395090
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk 
E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk



NOTES:
1. Inspection of Papers: Papers are available for inspection as follows:

Council’s website: https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1

Paper copies are available for inspection at the Public Access points:- Reception: Civic 
Centre - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, The Hollies - Midsomer Norton. Bath Central and 
Midsomer Norton public libraries.

2. Details of decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be 
circulated with the agenda for the next meeting. In the meantime, details can be obtained by 
contacting as above. 

3. Recording at Meetings:-

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and recording 
by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control.

Some of our meetings are webcast. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is to be filmed. If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast, please 
make yourself known to the camera operators. 

To comply with the Data Protection Act 1998, we require the consent of parents or guardians 
before filming children or young people. For more information, please speak to the camera 
operator.

The Council will broadcast the images and sound live via the internet 
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast The Council may also use the images/sound recordings on its 
social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters.

4. Public Speaking at Meetings

The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to make their views known at meetings. 
They may make a statement relevant to what the meeting has power to do. They may also 
present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a group. They may also ask a question to which a 
written answer will be given. Advance notice is required not less than two full working days 
before the meeting. This means that for meetings held on Thursdays notice must be 
received in Democratic Services by 5.00pm the previous Monday. Further details of the 
scheme:

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942

5. Emergency Evacuation Procedure

When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the designated 
exits and proceed to the named assembly point. The designated exits are signposted. 
Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people.

6. Supplementary information for meetings

Additional information and Protocols and procedures relating to meetings

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505


Licensing Sub-Committee - Thursday, 25th October, 2018

at 10.00 am in the Council Chamber  - Guildhall, Bath

A G E N D A

1.  EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out under 
Note 5 on the previous page.

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any 
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to 
indicate:

(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare.

(b) The nature of their interest.

(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,   
(as defined in Part 2, A and B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for Registration of 
Interests)

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is 
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer or a member of his 
staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting.

4.  TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR 

5.  MINUTES: 24 SEPTEMBER 2018 AND 11 OCTOBER 2018 (Pages 7 - 26)

6.  STREET TRADING PROCEDURE (Pages 27 - 30)

The Chair will, if required, explain the procedure.

7.  APPLICATION FOR A STREET TRADING PITCH (28), GRAND PARADE, BATH 
(Pages 31 - 62)

The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Sean O'Neill who can be contacted on 
01225 395090.





BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET COUNCIL

Page 1

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

Monday, 24th September, 2018, 3.00 pm

Councillors: Les Kew (Chair), Deirdre Horstmann and Dine Romero (in place of Rob 
Appleyard) 
Officers in attendance: Terrill Wolyn (Senior Public Protection Officer), Lauren Latta 
(Public Protection Technical Officer) and Carrie-Ann Evans (Deputy Team Leader 
(Barrister))

1   EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

The Democratic Services Officer advised the meeting of the procedure.

2   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

Apologies were received from Councillor Rob Appleyard, for whom Councillor Dine 
Romero substituted.

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none.

4   TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR 

There was none.

5   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING: 16 AUGUST 2018 

The Minutes of the meeting of 16 August 2018 were approved as a correct record 
and signed by the Chair.

6   LICENSING PROCEDURE 

The Chair drew attention to the procedure to be followed for the next two items of 
business.

7   APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE FOR TIVOLI, 6-8 DORCHESTER 
STREET, SOUTHGATE CENTRE, BATH BA1 1SS 

Applicant: T4051 Limited, represented by Hannah Mannion (Thrings Solicitors) and 
Andy Bush (National Operations Manager)

Other parties in attendance: Geoff Cannon (Police Licensing Officer), Mel Argles 
(B&NES Deputy Head of Safeguarding & Quality Assurance – Children and Young 
People) and Tracey Curzons (Early Years Advisory Teacher)

The parties confirmed that they understood the procedure to be followed for the 
hearing.

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Page 2 of 13

The Senior Public Protection Officer presented the report. A representation had been 
received from B&NES Safeguarding stating that the admission with parents of 
toddlers up to 24 months old to films with a 15 or 18 certificate was likely to have an 
adverse effect on the licensing objective of the protection of children from harm and 
requesting that this element of the application be refused and that the 
recommendations of British Board of Film Classification be upheld when classified 
films are screened. A representation had been received from the Police relating to all 
four licensing objectives. The Police had proposed a number of amendments to the 
Operating Schedule, to which the applicant had agreed in writing. The Sub-
Committee noted that the premises are located in the Cumulative Impact Area. The 
Sub-Committee was invited to determine the application.

Ms Mannion stated the applicant’s case. She referred to correspondence between 
the applicant and the Police on agenda pages 53-54 in which the applicant 
confirmed acceptance of the amendments to the Operating Schedule proposed by 
the Police, including the removal of all conditions relating to “Parent and Baby 
Screenings”.

The Chair asked whether the condition in the Operating Schedule that “no open 
containers of alcohol to leave the premises” was necessary, since no containers of 
alcohol open or closed could leave the premises, as supply off the premises had not 
been applied for. Ms Mannion said she would need to consult her clients about this.

In response to a question from a Member Mr Bush stated that the applicant was fully 
aware that the premises was situated in a residential area and would expect 
customers to leave quietly. He confirmed that the applicant was no longer seeking 
the conditions in the Operating Schedule that “the lights must be left on at low level 
through the screening” and that “no open containers of alcohol to leave the 
premises”, as all proposals relating to parent and baby screenings had been 
withdrawn and the supply of alcohol off premises had not been not applied for.

Geoff Cannon, Police Licensing Officer, stated the case for the Police. He said that 
he had agreed amendments to the Operating Schedule. He was happy with all the 
other conditions they had proposed. Responding to a Member he said that the 
amended conditions fully addressed his concerns about the potential impact of the 
premises on the licensing objectives in the Cumulative Impact Area. His initial 
concern was that premises might be a bar with a cinema, but was now satisfied that 
it would be a cinema with a bar.

Mel Argles stated the case on behalf of Safeguarding. She said that her concerns 
had been addressed by the removal of that part of the application relating to parent 
and baby screenings.

Tracey Curzons. She said that she had been invited to attend as a witness for Ms 
Argles. She said that her concerns had been addressed by the removal of that part 
of the application relating to parent and baby screenings.

Following an adjournment the Sub-Committee RESOLVED to grant the application 
with modifications as detailed below.

Decision and reasons

Page 6



Page 3 of 13

Members have had to determine an application for a new Premises Licence for 
Tivoli, 6-8 Dorchester Street, Southgate Centre, Bath, BA1 1SS. In doing so, they 
have taken into consideration the Licensing Act 2003, Statutory Guidance, the 
Council’s Policy and the Human Rights Act 1998.

Members are aware that the proper approach under the Licensing Act is to be 
reluctant to regulate in the absence of evidence and they must only do what is 
appropriate and proportionate in the promotion of the licensing objectives based on 
the information put before them. Members noted that each application is considered 
on its own merits. 

Members were careful to take account of the relevant written and oral 
representations made and were careful to balance their competing interests. 

Members were however careful to disregard irrelevant matters.

The Applicant

Hannah Mannion addressed members as the legal representative for the applicant.

She indicated that the application is for a boutique 5 screen cinema in the Southgate 
Shopping Centre. 

Ms Mannion confirmed verbally the matters that the applicant has agreed with the 
police in writing at Annex D page 53 of the report to the Licensing Sub Committee 
(“LSC”). 

Mr Bush, National Operations Manager for the applicant confirmed verbally that the 
applicant does not pursue the condition on the Operating Schedule which was set 
out at section M box e of the application, namely, that “the lights must be left on at 
low level through the screening” as all proposals in section M box e of the application 
regarding parent and baby screenings were no longer being pursued. Mr Bush 
confirmed also that the proposed condition at section M box (d) of the application, 
namely, “No open containers of alcohol to leave the premises” was not being 
pursued as supply of alcohol off premises was not applied for. 

Responsible Authorities

There had been a representation from the police that the licence sought would 
undermine all four licensing objectives. The representation cited concerns that the 
proposal to host parent and baby screenings of films classified 15 and 18 and the 
proposal to sell alcohol on Thursday, Friday and Saturday until 03:00 the following 
morning, shall undermine all four licensing objectives and, in respect of sale of 
alcohol, add to the cumulative impact. The Police Licensing Officer Geoff Cannon 
indicated in writing and confirmed verbally before the Committee, that the applicant 
had agreed to their proposed amendments to the Operating Schedule (set out at 
Annex D of report to LSC) and that the applicant understands their responsibilities 
and had willingly engaged with them in the process. 

Mr Cannon indicated when questioned that in his view the measures proposed 
addressed any cumulative impact, particularly now he better understood the nature 
of the premises. 

Page 7



Page 4 of 13

There had been a representation in writing from Bath and North East Somerset 
Council’s Safeguarding Team expressing grave concern regarding the applicant’s 
proposal to permit parents with toddlers up to 24 months old admission to films with 
a 15 or 18 certificate. Their representation contended that these proposals were 
extremely likely to undermine the protection of children from harm licensing objective 
and submitted that the British Board of Film Classification be adhered to. Concerns 
related to the emotional and physical wellbeing were expressed about the proposed 
condition that children up to the age of 24 months be restrained on the lap of the 
parent or guardian for the duration of the proposed screening. Mel Argles Deputy 
Head of Safeguarding and Quality Assurance, Children and Young People attended 
however she indicated that having heard what had been agreed between the parties 
her concerns had been addressed.

Tracey Curzons Early Years Advisory Teacher attended as a witness for the 
Safeguarding Team and indicated that having heard what had been agreed, that 
addressed her concerns also.

The applicant confirmed both in writing prior to the meeting and verbally before 
Members that it is no longer pursuing the parent and baby screenings at section M 
box e of the application that the Safeguarding Team had raised concerns about. 

Members

In reaching their decision Members noted that in relation to paragraph 9.42 of the 
Statutory Guidance their determination should be evidence-based, justified as being 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what is 
intended to be achieved.
Members carefully considered the representations made on behalf of the 
Responsible Authorities and the Applicant.

Members noted specifically that the Cumulative Impact Policy relates to the ‘on 
trade’ sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises. Members were satisfied that 
the applicant had demonstrated, taking into account all the relevant circumstances 
including the style and characteristics of the proposed premises together with 
conditions on the operating schedule, amendments to the operating schedule and 
additional conditions that the proposed licence would not add to the cumulative 
impact being experienced. 

Members considered that any effect of the proposed licence on the licensing 
objectives would be addressed by the conditions consistent with the proposed 
operating schedule (as amended), and proposed conditions put forward by the police 
and agreed to by the applicant (as set out below), all of which Members found to be 
appropriate and proportionate. 

Proposals and conditions no longer pursued to be removed from operating 
schedule
(from section M box e of operating schedule)

 Parents or guardians of children under the age of 24 months shall be 
permitted to bring their babies to films at screenings shown exclusively for that 
audience and the age verification restriction shall not apply to babies at those 
screenings;

Page 8



Page 5 of 13

 Prior to admittance, staff shall check the date of birth for each baby to be 
admitted to ensure they are under 24 months;

 No one shall be admitted to parent and baby screenings unless accompanied 
by a baby;

 Babies must be held on the laps of the parent or guardian throughout the 
screening;

 The lights must be left on at low level throughout the screening

(to be removed from Section M box d of operating schedule)

 No open containers of alcohol to leave the premises.

Changes to proposals and conditions/amendments to the Operating Schedule
 To reduce the terminal hour proposed for the Sale of Alcohol on Thursday, 

Friday and Saturday to 01:00 hours the following morning save for in relation 
to New Year’s Eve and New Year’s Day the Non-Standard Timing is to remain 
as applied for.

 To remove the measure relating to CCTV offered by the applicant at section 
M box b of the application and agreed to the proposed condition suggested by 
the police as follows:

“CCTV cameras shall be installed, to the satisfaction of the Police and 
ICO guidelines and will be maintained in full working order when the 
premises are open to the public. Recorded images will be of evidential 
quality. Recordings shall be kept for a minimum of 28 days and made 
available to the Police and Licensing Authority (in accordance with 
Data Protection legislation). Signs will be displayed that CCTV is 
recording.” 

Accordingly, members resolved to approve the application subject to the mandatory 
conditions and conditions consistent with the operating schedule, subject to the 
amendments and additions indicated above.

Authority was delegated to the Public Protection Officer to issue the licence. 

8   APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE FOR THE LUNA CINEMA LIMITED, 
BATH ROYAL CRESCENT LOWER LAWN, MARLBOROUGH LANE, BATH BA1 
2NQ 

Applicant: The Luna Cinema Ltd, represented by George Wood (Managing Director), 
Jamie Plummer (Head of Production) and Rachel Gillard (Executive Co-ordinator)

Other parties in attendance: Geoff Cannon (Police Licensing Officer), Nigel Shire 
(Environmental Protection), Stephen Huard (Marlborough Lane Residents 
Association), Nicola Isherwood (Royal Crescent Society Residents’ Association)

The parties confirmed that they understood the process to be followed for the 
hearing.

The Senior Public Protection Officer presented the report. A representation had been 
received from the Police relating to all the licensing objectives, and they had 
proposed amendments to the operating schedule as set out on pages 90-92 of the 

Page 9



Page 6 of 13

agenda. The applicant had agreed in writing to these amendments (page 93 of the 
agenda). A representation had been made by Environmental Protection in respect of 
the prevention of public nuisance licensing objective, and they had proposed the 
same reduction in hours as the Police, a reduction in the number of events per year 
and a limit to their duration, and a maximum audience capacity (agenda page 98). 
Six representations had been received from other persons, which collectively related 
to all four of the licensing objectives. Supplementary information had been received 
from one of the Other Persons, Cllr Andrew Furse, which would be admitted in 
evidence at the discretion of the Chair and the agreement of all parties. She invited 
the Sub-Committee to determine the application.

Cllr Furse’s late submission was accepted in evidence. It is attached as Appendix 1 
to these minutes.

Mr Wood stated the case for the applicant. He said his company specialised in the 
open air screening of classic films in heritage sites and sites of historic importance. 
The company operated throughout Britain. He believed that they had developed a 
mode of operation which worked. They had over 175 screenings every summer, and 
the events had a very low impact. It was the uniqueness of the sites that really made 
the events. He believed that their event management plan allowed them to hold 
events while promoting the licensing objectives. Key aspects of the plan were limited 
number of annual screenings, the time limit within which events would take place 
and the restriction on the number of people within the arena at any one time. All 
seats were sold in advance, so the number of people to attend was known. He noted 
that representations had objected to the clash between Luna’s planned event of the 
28-30th September with a Royal Crescent Society event on 29th September. 
However, the bid for 28-30th September had been submitted in January and agreed 
with the Council’s Events Team. It was not until March that the Royal Crescent 
Society’s event had been proposed. He hoped that the two events would be 
permitted to overlap. He submitted that there was no detail in the representations 
that indicated that Luna would not be able to promote the licensing objectives. He 
accepted that the amendments to the operating schedule proposed by the Police 
and Environmental Protection were correct and proper, and should remove the 
concerns of residents. He was acutely aware of the importance of not impacting 
adversely on the community, as this might lead to the prohibition of events on these 
sites in future.

Members put questions to Mr Wood.

Q: Can you tell us more about your noise management plan?
A: We play background music for about an hour and a half before the film. This 
allows our technician to check the ambience. The key thing for cinema sound is 
clarity rather than volume. We set sound levels with great sensitivity. 

Q: How about noise from the audience?
A: That is background noise. Two of the films we will be showing will be musicals 
and the audience might sing along with them, but that will have little impact. We will 
work closely with Environmental Protection to minimise any impact.

Q: The two events on the 29th September will only be separated by a low wall or ha-
ha. How can you be sure that there will be no spill over between them?

Page 10



Page 7 of 13

A: We will deploy staff to manage the circulation of people. We are confident that we 
can prevent people without tickets entering the cinema area, but some cinema 
customers might want to leave to attend the other event. It would be the 
responsibility of the managers of the other event to control this.

Q: Can you explain the use of headphones?
A: Let me ask Mr Plummer to give you the details. 

Mr Plummer stated that advice had been taken from independent sound consultant 
and it had been decided that if there was a problem about keeping noise down to an 
acceptable level, particularly on Sundays, within the timescale, then headphones 
would be used by the audience and the public address system would be deactivated. 
Most events are planned three months in advance, so there is plenty of time to visit 
the site and make appropriate adjustments to the sound system, but the headphones 
option is a back-up if it is the only way of preventing nuisance.

Mr Huard, Chairman of the Marlborough Lane and Buildings Residents Association, 
stated his case. He said that the noise at last year’s Luna event had been totally 
unacceptable. All the houses in Royal Crescent differed slightly from one another 
and listed building status limited what occupiers could do to noise proof them. 
Residents were liable to noise nuisance in hot weather when windows were open. 
He objected to the clash between the two events being held on Saturday 29th 
September. There would be two noisy events taking place at the same time in close 
proximity. The Association had had a meeting with Luna on 14th May, and had asked 
them to consider moving the event to Middle Common, which is an area regularly 
used for noisy events throughout the year and is acceptable to residents. These 
discussions had resolved nothing. To have two noisy events, one behind and one in 
front of people’s homes is not acceptable. On 22nd August the Association had been 
advised of the possible use of headphones. This raised concerns about how the 
cinema audience would react when told they would have to wear headphones. There 
had been no consultation with residents about this. Residents were very concerned 
after the disturbance caused by last year’s Luna event, despite Luna claiming they 
are experts in sound. The design of Royal Crescent is unique and has a unique 
ambience for sound. In response to questions from Members he stated that he had 
walked down Royal Crescent during last year’s event and the noise had been 
unacceptable. Residents are advised that if there are problems during an event, they 
should contact the organisers or the Council. When residents rang the Council, there 
was no one to talk to. Residents who experience noise nuisance do not necessarily 
make official complaints, but they do raise it as an issue at Residents’ Association 
meetings. Residents had spoken of the reverberation of noise from the event around 
the Crescent. The houses in Royal Crescent differ, with some having bedrooms in 
the front and others having them in the back. Those with bedrooms away from the 
noise react differently to those who are nearer to it.

Nicola Isherwood of Royal Crescent Residents’ Association stated her case. She 
said that she was also speaking on behalf of Rachel Clarkson-Short, who was 
unable to attend today’s hearing. She stated that they were approximately 115 
residents in Royal Crescent. Residents did not oppose all events in the Crescent, but 
hundreds of people visited the Crescent every day and she did not think it was 
necessary to have an open air cinema to entice them to do so. There was a lot of 
concern about the event that Luna had held last year, at which the volume had been 
turned down in response to a request from a resident and then turned up again. 

Page 11



Page 8 of 13

People had complained they were unable to have a conversation in their homes 
because of the noise, and two had complained that the noise had given them a 
migraine. It should be noted that some of the residents of the Crescent were children 
or elderly. She was concerned about two simultaneous events on 29th September, 
and felt that the Royal Crescent Society, a local organisation trying to benefit local 
residents, was almost being forced into cancelling its own event by an outside 
commercial operator. Residents felt that they had not been listened to. 

Mr Cannon explained how the Police had initially been concerned by the application 
and had proposed additional conditions to clarify details in order to ensure there was 
no adverse impact on the licensing objectives. The applicant had been responsive 
and had agreed to accept the additional conditions, so the Police had no remaining 
concerns. Responding to questions from Members he said no one had contacted the 
Police about last year’s event and that he was pleased that Luna had agreed that 
their SIA staff should be allocated separate specific responsibilities.

Nigel Shire stated the case for Environmental Protection. He explained the 
Environmental Team’s initial concerns about the application and stated that they 
were now content following Luna’s acceptance in writing of their proposed 
modifications to the operating schedule. Replying to the Chair he said no complaints 
had been made directly to Environmental Protection at the time of last year’s event, 
though a number of complaints were notified about six weeks afterwards.

The parties were invited to sum up.

Mr Huard said that residents objected to an event being forced on them without 
consultation. Not all residents of the Crescent are wealthy; many of them are tenants 
who pay rent. His Association was happy to meet and talk with event organisers. 
That is what he had done in May with guidance from Licensing. He objected to the 
fact that the Society was practically being forced to cancel its own event and that 
Luna appeared unwilling to engage in conversation about it.

Mr Wood said that events had to be agreed with the Council in advance. The event 
of 28-30th September had been agreed with the Council Events Team on 26th 
January. Luna was entirely happy to co-operate with the local community; the 
company operated at 65 locations in the country and had good relations with all the 
venues and local residents. Luna would in future improve communications with the 
local community by notifying the dates of all events in advance to residents as well to 
the Events Team. This would help prevent clashes between events in future. 
Locations for events were chosen because they were attractive to the public. A letter 
had been sent to residents on 4th September explaining the September event and 
giving a contact phone number. No one had contacted Luna in response to that letter 
to express concerns. 

Following an adjournment the Sub-Committee RESOLVED to grant the application 
with modifications as detailed below.

Decision and reasons

Members have had to determine an application for a new Premises Licence for the 
Luna Cinema Limited, Bath Royal Crescent Lower Lawn, Marlborough Lane, Bath, 

Page 12



Page 9 of 13

BA1 2NQ. In doing so, they have taken into consideration the Licensing Act 2003, 
Statutory Guidance, the Council’s Policy and the Human Rights Act 1998.

Members are aware that the proper approach under the Licensing Act is to be 
reluctant to regulate in the absence of evidence and they must only do what is 
appropriate and proportionate in the promotion of the licensing objectives based on 
the information put before them. Members noted that each application is considered 
on its own merits. 

Members were careful to take account of the relevant written and oral 
representations made and were careful to balance their competing interests. 
Members were however careful to disregard irrelevant matters such as the events 
calendar.

The Applicant
George Wood, Managing Director of the Luna Cinema Limited addressed members 
on behalf of the applicant.

Mr Wood indicated verbally that the Luna Cinema specialises in sites of historical 
and /or heritage importance, often in locations close to residents. They have 175 
screenings each summer and their screenings are low impact as they are set up on 
the first day of the screening. He indicated that they have regard to the peculiar, 
particular sensitivities of the sites.

Mr Wood contended that in his view there was no detail in the representations which 
undermines the promotion of the licensing objectives however, he confirmed verbally 
having already done so in writing, the applicant’s agreement to the measures 
proposed by the Police Licensing Officer and Senior Environmental Health Officer. 
Members also heard from Jamie Plummer, Head of Production on behalf of the 
applicant. He addressed members regarding technical points related to noise and 
logistics related to the event. 

Responsible Authorities
There had been a representation from the police expressing concern that the 
applicant’s proposals failed to adequately promote all of the licensing objectives. 
Specific concerns related to the number of proposed events and their duration which 
the police felt could potentially cause disproportionate amount of public nuisance and 
possibly low-level crime. In relation to the hours proposed for the licensable 
activities, the PLO expressed concern that the later hours, given the nature of the 
location and proximity to neighbouring properties, may give rise to increased public 
nuisance and possibly anti-social behaviour. There was concern around proposals in 
the operating schedule being vague and not specific enough to show how the 
applicant will promote the licensing objectives. Accordingly, the police proposed a 
reduction in timings; removal of some measures proposed by the applicant and 
proposed additional measures to mitigate concerns regarding the undermining of the 
licensing objectives. The applicant had agreed in writing (set out at Annex D to the 
LSC report) to the proposals made by the police (Annex C). The Police Licensing 
Officer Geoff Cannon noted in his written representations to the Licensing Authority 
that the applicant had responded promptly and positively to the concerns he had 
raised with them. 

Page 13



Page 10 of 13

Mr Cannon addressed members verbally to confirm his representations already 
made in writing. 

The Bath and North East Somerset Council Environmental Protection Team had 
made a representation that the proposed application would undermine the 
Prevention of Public Nuisance licensing objective. Concerns expressed were that 
with 10 events of 6 days duration late into the evening in The Royal Crescent, this 
could potentially cause a disproportionate amount of public nuisance. Further 
concerns related to timings of films, audience capacity and adequate measures to 
control noise from the licensable activities. Environmental Protection proposed 
amendments to the Operating Schedule relating to hours open to the public, hours 
for the exhibition of film, the number of events per year and maximum audience 
capacity in accordance with the representations made by the police. Further they 
proposed a noise management plan be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Environmental Protection Team one month prior to any event. 

Interested Parties
Representations had been received from Councillor Furse, the Marlborough Lane & 
Buildings Residents’ Association, the Crescent Lawn Company, the Royal Crescent 
Society (Lawn Events), the Royal Crescent Society Residents Association and the 
residents of the Royal Crescent. 

The Marlborough Lane and Buildings Residents Association expressed concerns in 
writing that the noise generated by the cinema would undermine the prevention of 
public nuisance licensing objective with particular reference to Saturday 29 
September 2018. Mr Stephen Huard attended as Chair of the Association and 
verbally confirmed the written representations and addressed members regarding 
noise from the event last year which he described as totally unacceptable. He 
explained to members that as all houses are slightly different, residents’ experiences 
of noise differ. 

The Royal Crescent Society Residents Association objected in writing to the 
application on the basis that it would undermine all four licensing objectives. 

The Association expressed concern that noise generated by the cinema would 
create public nuisance, including noise made by customers leaving the premises and 
returning to their vehicles, as well as disturbance to children sleeping. Ms Nicola 
Isherwood verbally confirmed her written representations on behalf of the 
Association but indicated that they are not against events in principle and the 
Association believes in sharing what they have. She explained however, that they 
did not feel listened to and cited the noise from last year’s event and the upset that 
had been caused to residents and one resident in particular who had complained 
directly to the event which she said resulted in a temporary noised reduction 
following which the noise had gone up again. 

The Royal Crescent Society (Lawn Events) expressed concerns in writing related to 
all four licensing objectives with particular reference to the Prevention of Public 
Nuisance and protection of public safety licensing objectives. They are concerned 
that there will be loud noise and music very close to where people live and close to 
children who go to school on Monday mornings. In relation to Prevention of crime 
and disorder licensing objective the Association indicated that parking offences and 
anti-social behaviour are inevitable in their view. Concerns were expressed also 

Page 14



Page 11 of 13

regarding Public Safety of customers leaving the premises and in relation to the 
protection of children from harm.

The Crescent Lawn Company objected to the application based on the licensing 
objectives of prevention of crime and disorder, prevention of public nuisance and 
public safety. The Association was concerned that the noise generated by the 
cinema would create a public nuisance. 

Ms Clarkson-Short, a resident to the proposed premises expressed concerns in 
writing that the application would undermine the prevention of crime and disorder, 
prevention of public nuisance and public safety licensing objectives. Ms Clarkson-
Short cited the noise from the cinema as well as the music proposed to be played 
before the film, customers leaving the premises, late night vehicle movements as 
contributing to public nuisance with particular concerned expressed about the impact 
of the premises’ licensable activities on a Sunday evening when children have 
school on Mondays and adults have work. Ms Clarkson-Short nominated Ms 
Isherwood to confirm her representations verbally before the Licensing Sub-
Committee. 

Councillor Andrew Furse objected to the application citing the prevention of public 
nuisance and protection of children from harm licensing objectives. His concerns 
related to the noise impact on residents and children in the vicinity with reference to 
Sundays in particular. Councillor Furse had submitted additional information by e-
mail dated 24.09.18 which all parties had consented to the introduction of, as a 
preliminary issue. Members had also agreed to the introduction of this additional 
information. Councillor Furse asked for his apologies to be recorded. He stood by his 
concerns based on last year’s event and in relation to holding events late on a 
Sunday however, he accepted that the use of headphones would mitigate the noise 
issues during the event, but once the event was over the noise created on a Sunday 
night will still impact residents and their children. He asked for the timing for the 
event to be brought forward.

Members
Members carefully considered the representations made on behalf of the Interested 
Parties, the Responsible Authorities and the Applicant. 

Members noted however that licensing is a permissive regime and their 
determination should be evidence-based, justified as being appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what is intended to be 
achieved. 

Members noted with care the representations made by the Interested Parties but 
balanced these against the representations received from the Responsible 
Authorities and all other relevant considerations and were satisfied that any effect of 
the licence on the licensing objectives could be addressed by the conditions 
consistent with the operating schedule, subject to the amendments and proposed 
conditions put forward by the police and Environmental Health Team and agreed to 
by the applicant (as set out below), all of which Members 
found to be appropriate and proportionate. 

Proposals and conditions no longer pursued to be removed from Operating 
Schedule

Page 15



Page 12 of 13

(from section M of operating schedule)
 There will be no more than 10 film events per year
 There will be bag checks and security searches before entry to the site
 There will be a full security team on site at all times. This security team will 

include SIA badged staff members managing Entrances, Exit and Bar area. 

Changes to proposals and conditions/amendments to the Operating Schedule
Change: 

 The hours the premises are open to the public will be amended from 17:00 to 
23:55 Tuesday to Sunday, to 17:00 to 23:15 Tuesday to Sunday 

 The hours for the exhibition of film will be amended from 18:30 to 23:30 
Tuesday to Sunday, to 18:30 to 22:45 Tuesday to Sunday 

 The hours for the supply of alcohol will be amended from 17:00 to 23:00 
Tuesday to Sunday, to 17:00 to 22:30 Tuesday to Sunday 

Add:
 The Luna Cinema will be limited to a maximum of 2 events per year consisting 

of no more than 3 consecutive days to take place between the start of June 
and the end of October

 The maximum audience capacity for the premises will not exceed 2000.
 Staff shall be trained on issues regarding the Licensing Act 2003, service of 

alcohol. A record of this training will be kept at the premises and made 
available for inspection as required by the Police or Licensing Authority. 

 There will be a minimum of 3 SIA registered members of security staff will be 
on duty from 30 minutes prior to each film evening opening to the public and 
until the event closes to the public. 

 2 SIA registered members of security staff will be positioned at the box office 
to conduct random bag searches.

 At least 1 SIA registered member of security staff will be positioned in the bar 
and concessions areas. 

 The organisers will provide notification to the police and Licensing Authority at 
least one month in advance of each event taking place. 

 A noise management plan shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Environmental Protection Team one month prior to any event. 

Accordingly, members resolved to approve the application subject to the mandatory 
conditions and conditions consistent with the operating schedule, subject to the 
amendments and additions indicated above.

Authority was delegated to the Public Protection Officer to issue the licence. 
Members noted and encouraged the applicant’s indication that they would be 
proactive at communicating with residents in the future with event proposals. 

Members noted that the review process under the Licensing Act 2003 represents a 
key protection for the community where problems associated with the licensing 
objectives occur after the grant or variation of a premises licence.

The meeting ended at 8.37 pm

Chair(person)

Page 16



Page 13 of 13

Date Confirmed and Signed

Prepared by Democratic Services

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Page 15Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET COUNCIL

Page 1

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

Thursday, 11th October, 2018, 10.00 am

Councillors: Les Kew (Chair), Rob Appleyard and Deirdre Horstmann 
Officers in attendance: John Dowding (Senior Public Protection Officer) and Shaine 
Lewis (Team Leader Resources - Legal Team)

9   EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

The Democratic Services Officer advised the meeting of the procedure.

10   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

There were none.

11   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none.

12   TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR 

There was none.

13   TAXI PROCEDURE 

The Chair drew attention to the procedure to be followed for the two taxi hearings.

14   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

The Committee having been satisfied that the public interest would be better served 
by not disclosing relevant information, in accordance with the provisions of Section 
100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, RESOLVED that the public shall be 
excluded from the meeting for the next two items of business and that the reporting 
of this part of the meeting be prevented under Section 100A(5A), because of the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1 and 2 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended. 

15   CONSIDERATION OF FIT AND PROPER PERSON IN THE ABSENCE OF A 
VALID DBS CERTIFICATE AND FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH REASONABLE 
REQUEST OF DELEGATED OFFICER - 16/00683/TAXI 

The license holder was not present and had not communicated any explanation for 
his failure to attend the hearing.

Members RESOLVED to proceed with the hearing in his absence.

The Senior Public Protection Officer presented the report. As part of the three-yearly 
program of checks a letter had been sent to the license holder in January 2018 

Page 21



Page 2 of 4

requesting him to submit a valid DBS certificate. The licence holder had failed to 
respond to this letter and to subsequent letters sent to his last known address.

The Sub-Committee RESOLVED that:

1. in the absence of a valid DBS certificate it was not possible to establish that 
the licence holder remained a fit and proper person to hold a combined 
Hackney Carriage/Private Hire driver’s licence;

2. the failure of the licence holder to comply with the reasonable requests of 
delegated officer also called into question his status as a fit and proper 
person;

3. therefore the licence holder’s licence should be revoked. 

Reasons

Members have had to determine whether or not the licensee continues to be a fit and 
proper person to hold a combined Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s Licence 
having failed to provide a copy of the Disclosure and Barring Service Certificate as 
required and having failed to comply with two reasonable requests to do so. In 
reaching their decision members had regard to the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, Human Rights Act 1998, case law and the 
Council’s Policy.
 
Members were satisfied the notice of hearing and report pack had been sent to the 
licensee’s last known address. Members were satisfied that the licensee had been 
sent letters in January and July 2018 advising of the obligation to provide a DBS 
check and warning that failure to comply would result in a referral to the Licensing 
Sub Committee. The licensee had not attended the committee and the Senior Public 
Protection Officer confirmed there had been no contact from the licensee regarding 
the DBS or committee hearing. In all the circumstances Members were satisfied it 
was in the interests of public protection to determine this matter in absence given the 
licensee had been given reasonable notice of the hearing and had not provided a 
reason to defer the matter.
 
Members had regard to the contents of the report, annexes and noted the licensee 
made no written representations, had not contacted the office or attended the 
hearing.
 
Members noted:

i. The licencee was first licensed in December 2005 and the current 
licence issued on 20 August 2018 subject to “a satisfactory DBS 
Check”. 

ii. The Council’s Policy on Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 
Standards States; “that all holders of a combined Hackney 
Carriage/Private Hire drivers licences will be subject to an Enhanced 
Disclosure & Barring Service check every three years from the date of 
the first licence issued”. In line with this, the licensee was sent a letter 
to his last known address in January 2018 advising that a DBS check 

Page 22



Page 3 of 4

was due and that an appointment should be made for that purpose by 
31 March 2018. No response was received from the licensee. 

iii. The licensee was sent a further letter on 31 July 2018 enclosing a copy 
of the January 2018 letter, advising the DBS was outstanding and 
requesting the licensee to contact the Taxi Licensing office within 7 
days to avoid formal action. That letter advised no further reminders 
would be sent and failure to make contact would result in a referral to 
the Licensing Sub-Committee.  

iv. The licensee failed to contact the Taxi Licensing team as requested 
and has failed to attend the LSC hearing giving no reason. 

Members reminded themselves of their policy and noted that a DBS Check is an 
important tool in determining whether or not a licensee continues to be a fit and 
proper person to hold a licence. In all the circumstances and in the absence of a 
satisfactory DBS check Members could no longer be satisfied that the licensee 
continued to be fit and proper.

Accordingly members resolved to revoke the licensee’s licence under section 
61(1)(b) Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

Authority delegated to the Public Protection Officer to give notice to this effect.

16   APPLICATION FOR A COMBINED HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE 
DRIVER'S LICENCE - 18/01001/TAXI 

The applicant confirmed that he understood the procedure to be followed for the 
hearing.

The Senior Public Protection Officer presented the report and provided Members 
with a copy of a DBS certificate relating to the applicant and a written statement 
submitted by him. The hearing was adjourned to allow Members time to study these 
documents.

After the adjournment the applicant stated his case and was questioned by 
Members.

After a further adjournment the Sub-Committee RESOLVED that the applicant was a 
fit and proper person to hold a combined Private Hire/Hackney Carriage Driver’s 
Licence.

Reasons

Members have had to determine an application for a combined Hackney 
Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s Licence. In doing so they took account of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, Human Rights Act 1998, case law 
and the Council’s Policy.
 
The applicant stated the last offence was 17 years ago and he is a changed person 
since then and having been a licensed driver in Bristol and South Gloucestershire. 
When the recession hit the trade dropped off so he retrained as an electrician. At 
present he needed flexibility to juggle work with caring for his elderly parents which 
the taxi trade would provide. 

Page 23



Page 4 of 4

Members noted the convictions fall outside the policy although disclose a propensity 
towards dishonesty and offences against the person. Members were uncomfortable 
with the applicant’s presentation and his demeanour before them which at times was 
challenging and had to be satisfied that their friends and loved ones would be safe 
and secure in a vehicle alone being driven by the applicant. In view of the policy and 
all the circumstances, however, Members gave the applicant the benefit of the doubt 
and grant the licence with a warning that in the event of any future misconduct the 
matter will be referred to the committee for determination.

The meeting ended at Time Not Specified

Chair(person)

Date Confirmed and Signed

Prepared by Democratic Services

Page 24



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE PROCEDURE 
APPLICATIONS FOR

MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES, PERMITS, CONSENTS 

OVERVIEW

Introductions by Chair

Officer introduces the 
report.

Applicant’s case/questions  
[20 minutes]

Objector/Consultee
case/questions
 [20 minutes]

Closing statement by 
objector/consultee. 

Closing statement by 
applicant.

Committee retire to private 
session to consider 

application.

Meeting reconvened to hear 
Decision and Reasons

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE PROCEDURE 
APPLICATIONS FOR

MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES, PERMITS, CONSENTS 

1. The Chair will introduce Members of the Committee, introduce the Officers 
present, explain the procedure to be followed and ensure those present have 
received and understood that procedure.

2. The Licensing Officer will outline the nature of the matter to be considered by the 
Committee.

3. The Applicant and or representative present their case and may be questioned by 
the Committee and other parties.

4. The Applicant may call witnesses in support who may be questioned by the 
Committee and other parties.

5. The objecting parties address the Committee and can be questioned by the 
Committee and other parties on matters relevant to the application. Any person 
presenting evidence for an objecting party may also be questioned by Members 
and other parties. 

6. The Chair will ask the Licensing Officers present whether they wish to comment.  
If an Officer makes comment they may be questioned.

7. The parties are invited to make closing statements.

8. The Chair will invite the Committee to move into private session to enable the 
Members to deliberate in private.  The Committee will reconvene publicly if 
clarification of evidence is required and/or legal advice is required. The 
Committee may retire to a private room, or alternatively require vacation of the 
meeting room by all other persons.

9. Whilst in deliberation the Committee will be accompanied by Legal and 
Democratic Service Officers for the purpose of assisting them in drafting their 
reasoning for the decision.

10.The Committee will reconvene the meeting and the Chair will announce the 
Committee’s decision with reasons and advise that the decision will be released 
in writing within the statutory time limits.

Page 27



PLEASE NOTE:

 Where the Committee considers it necessary the procedure may be varied.

 In circumstances where a party fails to attend the Committee will consider 
whether to proceed in absence or defer to the next meeting. Should a matter be 
deferred the deferral notice will state that the matter may proceed in a party’s 
absence on the next occasion. In deciding whether to proceed all notices, 
communications and representations will be considered.

 Only in exceptional circumstances will the Committee take account of 
additional late documentary or other information and will be at the discretion of 
the Chair and on notice to all the other parties.  No new representations will be 
allowed at the hearing.

 The Committee will disregard all information or representations considered 
irrelevant.

 The hearing will take the form of a discussion. The Committee will allow parties to 
the proceedings to ask questions. Formal cross examination will be discouraged 
and, should they be necessary, supplementary questions allowed for clarification 
purposes only.

 Parties will have an equal amount of time to present their cases. Whilst time limits 
are at the Chair’s discretion, in the interests of cost and efficiency, presentations 
will not normally exceed twenty minutes to include summarising the case. Time 
limits will not include the time taken for questions. 

N.B.
1.  Where there is more than one party making relevant representations the 

time allocated will be split between those parties.
2. Where several parties are making the same or similar representations it is 

suggested that one representative is appointed to avoid duplication and to 
make the most efficient use of the allocated time. 

3. Where an objection is made by an association or local residents group, a 
duly authorised person – as notified to the Licensing authority – may 
speak on behalf of that association or local residents group. 

 The Chair may request that persons behaving in a disruptive manner should 
leave the hearing and their return refused, or allowed subject to conditions.  An 
excluded person is however, entitled to submit the information they would have 
been entitled to present had they not been excluded.

 Bath & North East Somerset Council is committed to taking decisions in an 
honest, accountable and transparent fashion. On occasion however, it may be 
necessary to exclude members of the press and public pursuant to the Local 
Government Act 1972 Schedule 12 (a). In those circumstances reasons for such 
decisions will be given.

 If a person has special needs regarding access, hearing or vision, this should be 
brought to the Licensing Authority’s attention prior to the hearing so that 
reasonable adjustments may be made. 

Page 28



Page 29

Agenda Item 7



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES: 24 SEPTEMBER 2018 AND 11 OCTOBER 2018
	Minutes
	 
	Minutes Public Pack, 11/10/2018 Licensing Sub-Committee
	Minutes


	6 STREET TRADING PROCEDURE
	Licensing Sub Committee Miscellaneous procedure

	7 APPLICATION FOR A STREET TRADING PITCH (28), GRAND PARADE, BATH

